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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 41 Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited will be held on Saturday, 21% Day of April, 2023 at 11:00
a.m. at the registered office of the Company at Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg,
Shakarpur, New Delhi, 110092 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 together with the reports of the Auditors’ and
Directors’ thereon.

To appoint Mr. Subhash Sapra (DIN: 00241940), Managing Director who retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

. Appointment of Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal (DIN: 07587549) as an Independent Director
of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any of
the Companies Act, 2013, (“the Act”) read with Schedule IV to the Act, and the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), and pursuant to applicable provisions of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, including any modification or re-enactment thereof and in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal (DIN: 07587549) who
was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director with effect
from January 07, 2021 under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office as
such up to the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom, the company has
received in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing his candidature for
the office of Director of the Company be and is hereby appointed as a Independent Director of
the Company, not liable to be retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of five consecutive
years for a term up to January 06, 2026.
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable in
connection with or incidental to give effect to the above resolution, including but not limited to
filing of necessary forms or returns with the relevant statutory bodies, and to comply with all
other requirements in this regard.”

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/-

Subhash Sapra

(Managing Director)

Date : 15.03.2023 DIN:00241940
Place: New Delhi
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NOTES:

. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the Special
Business(es), if any, to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

. A MEMBER WHO IS ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ONLY AND
A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE, PROXY FORMS DULY COMPLETED IN ALL RESPECTS SHOULD
BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE MEETING.A PERSON CAN
ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND
HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER
HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE
PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR
ANY OTHER PERSON(S) OR SHAREHOLDER(S).

. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative
to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

. Relevant documents as referred to in the accompanying Notice along with the Statements are
open for inspection by members at registered office of the Company on all working days, except
Saturdays, during business hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

. Brief details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting
along with details of their other directorship, shareholding in the Company, expertise in specific
functional area pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) issued
by ICSI forms part of this notice and is annexed hereto as Annexure-I.

. Members who have not registered their email address so far are requested to register their email
for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices and Circulars etc. from
Company electronically. Members can do this by updating their email addresses with their
depository participants.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Members may note that Notice of 41 Annual General Meeting and Annual Report will also be
available on the website of the Company’s website www.hindaf.in for their download.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to
dematerialized form as required under the amended SEBI guidelines and regulations to
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease in portfolio management.
Members may contact the Company or its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA), for
assistance in this regard.

The members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate any change in
their address with pin code immediately either to the Company or to its Registrar & Share
Transfer Agent (RTA) promptly.

The members who are holding shares in demat form are requested to intimate any change in
their address with pin code immediately to their Depository Participants.

The Notice of AGM and along with Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent through ordinary post.
Members may note this Notice and the Annual Report 2020-21 will also be available on the
Company’s website viz. www.hindaf.in.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the member
at the Annual General Meeting.

The Register of Directors or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the
Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and
Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Saturday, April 15, 2023 to Friday, April 21,
2023. (both days inclusive).

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of
member/beneficial owner as on cut-off date i.e. Friday, 14™ April, 2023.

The Board of Directors of the company has appointed Mrs. Anju Bansal, Company Secretaries
(C. P. No. 17594), as Scrutinizer for conducting the voting process for the Annual General
Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at AGM, first count the votes
cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast during AGM and make not later than
48 hours of conclusion of AGM a “Scrutinizer’s Report” of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign
the same. Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be
passed on the date of the Annual General Meeting.

The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be forwarded to Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India Limited within 48 hours of the conclusion of Annual General Meeting and
shall be uploaded on the website of the Company.

No gifts, gift coupons, or cash in lieu of gifts shall be distributed to members at or in connection
with the general meeting.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are therefore requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with
whom they are maintaining their de-mat account. A person, whose name is recorded in the
Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the depositories as
on the cut-off date, shall only be entitled to avail the facility of Poll.

Instructions for remote e-voting are as below:

In terms of the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended (hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for
the purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is providing facility of remote
e-voting to exercise votes on the items of business given in the Notice of Annual General
Meeting (AGM) through electronic voting system, to members holding shares as on Friday,
14 April, 2023 (end of day), being the cut-off date fixed for determining voting rights of
members, entitled to participate in the remote e-voting process, through the e-voting platform
provided by NSDL or to vote at the AGM.
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THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

The voting period begins on 18™ April 2023 at 09.00 AM and ends on 20" April 2023 at 05.00 PM.
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 07" April, 2013 may cast their vote electronically. The
e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.

The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

Click on “Shareholders” module.

Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with
the Company.
OR

=4

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-

in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your
vote electronically.

(vi)

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

(vii)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
(viii)  If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical
shareholders)

10
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o Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact

Company/RTA.
Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)
Bank as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to
Details login.
OR Date e If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company
of Birth please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank
(DOB) details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x)  Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi)  For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(xiii) ~ On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xv)  After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

11
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(xvi)  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii)  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting
page.

(xviii)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app
can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the
mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

(xx)  Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —Remote Voting

¢ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

¢ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

o After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

o Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; (designated email
address by company) , if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

12
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If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the e-Voting System, you may refer
the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at
www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob
Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542).

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai -
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/-

Subhash Sapra
Date: 15.03.2023 (Managing Director)
Place: New Delhi DIN:00241940
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

ITEM NO.3

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors in
its meeting held on January 07, 2021 appointed Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal (DIN: 07587549) as
an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director to hold office for a period of five
years effective from January 07, 2021, not liable to retire by rotation, subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company.

As per Reg. 25(2A) of Listing Regulations, the appointment, re-appointment or removal of an
independent director of a listed company shall be subject to the approval of shareholders by way
of a special resolution.

The Company has received notice in writing pursuant to Section 160 of the Act from a member
signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal for appointment
as an Independent Director.

The Company has received consent in Form DIR-2 to act as Director and intimation in DIR-8
pursuant to Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 to
the effect that he is not disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013. The Company has received declaration from Mr. Paritosh Bansal confirming that he meets
the criteria of Independence as prescribed under the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Act, 2015.

Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal fulfils the conditions for his reappointment as an Independent Director
as specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. He holds valid registration certificate with the databank of
Independent Directors.

Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal is not debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any
SEBI order or any such authority pursuant to circulars dated 20" June, 2018 issued by BSE and
NSE Circular no. NSE/CML/2018/24 dated 20™ June, 2018.

Details of his profile, qualification, experience and the information pursuant to regulation 36(3) of
Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting are disclosed herein as part of

14
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Annexure-1.

Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal is having experience in management of business operations. The Board
considers that induction of Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal would benefit the Company and therefore,
recommends obtaining approval of the members as a Special Resolution for appointment of Mr.
Paritosh Kumar Bansal for a term of five years with effect from January 07, 2021 to January 06,
2026.

Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal is said to be concerned or interested in the proposed resolution as it
relates to his own appointment. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their
relatives are, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said special
resolution set out at Item No. 3 of this Notice.
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ANNEXURE I TO THE NOTICE

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER

REGULATION 36(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD-2

Name Mr. Subhash Sapra Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal

Director

Number (DIN)

D.O.B. 21/12/1948 26/08/1978

Qualification Graduate Post Graduate

Expertise in He has expertise in Finance] He has expertise in business

specificarea Business and Business| research and business|
Management management.

Date of First 08/07/1980 N.A.

appointment on

theBoard of the

Company

No. of Equity

Shares held as on 450500 Nil

315t March, 2019

Remuneration last

drawn by such Rs.10,000/- p.a. N.A.

person, if any

Terms and He was appointed as a Managing | Nil

Conditions of Director w.e.f. 30.03.2015

Appointment

List of , .

Directorship held Nil Nil

in other listed

companies

16



HINDUSTAN AUTO FINANCE LIMITED

Regd. Add.: Cabin No. DA-8, 2" Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110092
E-Mail: hindaf1980@gmail.com, CIN: L65910DL1980PLC010617

Website: www.hindaf.in

Names of Listed
Entities in which the
person is
Chairman/Member
of Committees of the
Board

Nil

Nil

Relationship
with Directors and
KMP’s

He is Husband of Mrs. Neera
Sapra, Chief Financial Officer &
Director of the Company.

He is not related to any Director
and KMP’s of the Company.
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BOARD’S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present to the valued stakeholders, the 41%' Annual Report of M/s
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company
for the Year ended 31 March, 2021.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS- AT A GLANCE

> Overall Performance of your Company

* The Financial Year 2020-21 had been a little slow for the Company as your Company has shown
a moderate performance during the year under review. The net profit of your Company had
decreased from Rs.9,850/- for FY 2019-20 to Rs.8,714/- for FY 2020-21.

> The financial summary, performance highlights operations/state of affair of vour

Company for the vear are summarized below:

Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)

PARTICULARS Standalone
2020-21 2019-20

Income from Business Operations 2.46 3.19
Other Income - -
Total Income 2.46 3.19
Less: Expenditure except Depreciation 2.34 3.06
Profit/Loss before Interest, Depreciation and 0.13 0.14
Tax
Less: Interest and other Financial Charge(s) - -
Profit/Loss before Depreciation and Tax 0.13 0.14
Less: Depreciation 0.02 0.02
Profit/Loss before Tax 0.11 0.12
Less: Tax Expense 0.02 0.02
Add: Deferred Tax Asset - -
Net Profit/Loss after Tax 0.09 0.10
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Earnings per share:Basic
Diluted 0.0025 0.0028
0.0025 0.0028

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the financial year 2020-21, the Company earned a net profit of Rs. 8,714 as compared
to net profit of Rs. 9,850 in financial year 2019-20.

DIVIDEND

To conserve the financial resources, the company has not recommended any dividend in the
financial year ended March 31, 2021.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business during the year under review.
RESERVES

The Board proposed to transfer the entire amount of Rs.8,714/- to the reserves & surplus
account.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND

PROTECTION FUND

Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend declared or paid by the Company, the provisions
of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits in terms of section
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

There were no deposits which remained unpaid or unclaimed by the Company as on March 31,
2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital:
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During the year under review, there was no change in Authorized Share capital of the Company.
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,00,00,000 divided into 6000000 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital:
During the year under review, there was no change in Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

of the Company. The present Paid-up Capital of the Company is Rs. 3,50,28,000 divided into
3502800 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for the financial
year 2020-21 is available on the website of the company viz. www.hindaf.in and can be accessed
through link https://hindaf.in/User/view desk/32.

SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE/ JOINT VENTURES COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies during the
financial year ended 2020-21.

LISTING

The shares of the Company are listed at Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India (“MSEI”). The
listing fees for the financial year 2020-21 has been paid to MSEI The ISIN of the Company is
INE806Q01018.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Constitution of the Board:

As on 31% March, 2021, the Board comprises following directors:

Name of | Category | Date of | Total No. of Committee? No. of
Director cum Appointmen | Directorship Shares
Designati |t at current 1 In which In__ which held as
on term & . .| on
i i Director rector Is March
designation hairman
. 31,2020
is member
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Mr. Subhash | Chairman | 15/06/2005 1 0 0 450500
Sapra &

Managing

Director
Mrs. Neera | Director 30/03/2015 1 0 0 336700
Sapra
Mr. Man Singh | Director 24/08/2018 1 2 0 -
Tosaria
Mr. Sudhir Jain | Director 24/08/2018 1 2 2 -
Mr. Paritosh | Director 07/01/2021 2 2 0 -
Kumar Bansal

1 Excluding LLPs, Section 8 Company & Struck off Companies
2 Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committees across all
Public Companies.

The Board of Directors of the Company has optimum combination of executive and non-
executive directors including independent directors and women director in compliance with
applicable provisions of this Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

None of the Directors of Board is a member of more than ten Committee or Chairman of more
than five committees across all the public companies in which they are Director.

Directors retire by Rotation

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Subhash Sapra, Managing Director of the Company retires
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his appointment.

The relevant details as required under Reg. 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by Institute of Company
Secretaries of India of the person seeking appointment as Director is annexed to the Notice
convening the 41% Annual General Meeting.

Changes during the year
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During the financial year 2020-21, Mrs. Mithlesh, Independent Director has resigned from the
post of Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.01.2021 and Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal
has been appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director of the Company w.e.f. 07.01.2021.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year 2020-21, there were no changes in Key Managerial Personnel.

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
UNDER SECTION 149(6) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

All Independent Directors have given declarations under section 149(7) that they meet the
criteria of Independence as laid down under section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that
they qualify to be Independent Directors pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. They have also confirmed that they meet the criteria
for the requirements of Independent Director as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances,
situation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability
to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgement and without any external
influence.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors on the board of the Company possess
requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold highest standards of

integrity and are independent of management.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD & COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors met six times during the financial year ended 31%" March, 2021 in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The
intervening gap between two board meetings was within the period as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial Standrad-1 and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations 2015. The requisite quorum was present at all the meetings and
continued valuable inputs on the matters brought before the Board of Directors from time to
time.

Date of Board Meetings i.e. 13.05.2020, 11.08.2020, 14.11.2020, 21.12.2020, 07.01.2021
12.02.2021

The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting are as under:

S.No. Name of Directors No. of Board Meetings
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Held Attended
1. Subhash Sapra 6 6
2. Neera Sapra 6 6
3. Man Singh Tosaria 6 6
4. Sudhir Jain 6 6
5. Mithlesh# 5 5
6. Paritosh Kumar Bansal* 1 1

# Mrs. Mithlesh ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.01.2021.
*Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal has been appointed as an Additional (Independent) Director
w.e.f. 07.01.2021.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play vital role in strengthening the Corporate Governance practices of
the Company and focus effectively on the issues and expedient resolution of the diverse matters.
The Committee also make specific recommendations to the Board on various matters as and
when required. All observations, recommendations and decisions of the Committee were placed
before the Board for information, noting and approval.

As on March 31, 2021, the following committees have been constituted in terms of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act,
2013.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has constituted Audit Committee in compliance with provisions of Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

. Meetings during the year

During the year, the Audit Committee of the Company met 4 (four) times viz. 13.05.2020,
11.08.2020, 14.11.2020, and 12.02.2021.

. Composition and Attendance of Audit Committee as on March 31, 2021

The Composition of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company along with details of
the meetings held and attended during the financial year 2020-21 are detailed below:
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S.No. | Name Category Designation |No. of No. of
Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings
held Attended
L. Sudhir Jain Independent | Chairman 4 4
Director
2. Mithlesh# Independent | Member 4 3
Director
3. Man Singh Tosaria InFlependent Member 4 4
Director
4. Paritosh Kumar Independent
Bansal* Direlgtor Member ! !

# Mrs. Mithlesh ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.01.2021.

*Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal was appointed as Additional (Independent) Director w.e.f.

07.01.2021 and was inducted as a member of Audit Committee w.e.f. 07.01.2021.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has been constituted in
compliance with provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19
of the Listing Regulations.

. Meetings during the year

During the year under review, Committee members met once 07.01.2021.

. Composition and Attendance of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as on March

31, 2021.

The Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of the
Company along with details of the meetings held and attended during the financial year 2020-

21 are detailed below:

S. No. |Name Category Designation |No. of No. of
Committee (Committee
Meetings Meetings
held Attended
1. Sudhir Jain Independent | Chairman 1 1
Director
2. Mithlesh* Independent | Member 1 1
Director
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3. Man Singh Tosaria | Independent | Member 1 1
Director
4. Paritosh Kumar Independent | Member
4 . 0 0
Bansal Director

*Mrs. Mithlesh ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.01.2021.

# Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal was appointed as Additional (Independent) Director w.e.f.
07.01.2021 and inducted as a member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee w.e.f.
07.01.2021.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Your Company has constituted Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in compliance with
provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing
Regulations.

. Meetings during the year

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company met 4
(four) times on 13.05.2020, 11.08.2020, 14.11.2020, and 12.02.2021.

. Composition and Attendance of Stakeholders Relationship Committee as on March 31,
2021.

The Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of the Company
along with details of the meetings held and attended during the financial year 2020-21 are
detailed below:

S. No. |Name Designation | Category No. of No. of
Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings
held Attended
L. Sudhir Jain Independent | Chairman 4 4
Director
1. Mithlesh# Independent | Member 3 3
Director
2. Man Singh Tosaria |Independent |Member 4 4
Director
4. Paritosh Kumar Independent
Bansal* Diregtor Member ! !

# Mrs. Mithlesh ceased to be the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 15.01.2021.
*Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal was appointed as Additional (Independent) Director w.e.f.
07.01.2021 and inducted as a member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company
w.e.f. 07.01.2021.
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015, the Company has
adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for
securing/reporting/deterring/punishing/rectifying any unethical, unlawful acts, behaviour,
leak/suspected leak of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information etc. and to address the bona fide
concern of malpractice, deviation from the policies of the Company internally in an effective
and systematic manner after its discovery.

The functioning of the vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time.
During the year under review, no compliant pertaining to the Company was received under the
Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

The said policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed through the link
https://hindaf.in/User/view_desk/23.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS.

In terms of the provisions of section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a formal annual
performance evaluation has been done by the Board of its own performance, the Directors
individually as well as evaluation of its committees.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from all the
Directors on the basis of parameters/criteria such as Board Composition & Quality, Board
Meetings and procedures, Board strategy and Risk Management, Board and Management
Relations, Succession Planning. The performance evaluation of the Directors was carried out
by the entire Board (excluding the director being evaluated). The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from
committee members on the basis of parameters/criteria such as functions and duties of
Committees, adequacy of committee composition, effectiveness of meetings etc.

Independent Directors of the Company in their separate meeting held on 0¥ March, 2021
reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. They
also reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL
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The Board on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed a policy
relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management
Personnel and other employees, along with the criteria for appointment and removal of
Directors, Key Managerial personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is fully empowered to
determine/approve and revise subject to necessary approvals, the remuneration of managerial
personnel, after taking into account the financial position of the Company, trends in industry,
qualification, experience, past performance etc. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting
fees for every meeting of the Board and its committees attended by them. The Nomination and
Remuneration policy is available on the website of the Company at
https://hindaf.in/User/view_desk/23.

FAMILIARIZATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board has
framed a policy to familiarize Independent Directors about the Company.

AUDITORS

A. STATUTORY AUDITOR

M/s Luthra & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 031997N) carried out
the Statutory Audit of the Company for the financial year ended 2020-21. There were no adverse
remarks or qualification on accounts of the Company from the Statutory Auditor. The Notes on
Accounts and observations of the Auditors in their Report on the Accounts of the Company are
self-explanatory and in the opinion of the Directors, do not call for any further clarification(s).
Also, the report submitted by the Auditor is unqualified.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to provision of section 204 of the Companies act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014, the Board of Directors
based on recommendation of Audit Committee has appointed M/s Anju Bansal & Associates,
Company Secretaries as a Secretarial Auditor in their meeting held on 27.05.2019 till the time
the power is revoked by the Board of Directors at a remuneration as Board of Directors may
think fit in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor.

The Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021 was conducted by M/s Anju
Bansal & Associates, Company Secretaries, and the report thereon is annexed herewith as

“Annexure- B”.

Qualification(s) and Directors' comments on the report of Secretarial Auditor:
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1. The Company has not appointed a Whole Time Company Secretary pursuant to Section 203
of the Companies Act, 2013, during financial year 2020-21.

2. The company did not conduct Annual General Meeting for the year under consideration.

3. The Company did not comply with provisions of Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

4. The Company did not comply with provisions of Regulation 6, 7(3), 13(3), 14, 29, 30, 31,
33, 35,40(10), 47 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,

2015 during the period under review.

5. The Company did not comply with the provisions of Closure of Trading Window as per
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2018 during the period under review.

6. The Company did not comply with the provisions of Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories
and Participants) Regulations, 2018 during the period under review.

Reply of Management for observation made by the Secretarial Auditors in their report:

1. In respect of observation pertaining to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
appointment of Company Secretary, it was replied by the management that the company
was in process of searching right candidate for the post of company secretary.

2. Inrespect of observation made pertaining to not conducting Annual General Meeting, it was
replied by the Management, that the Company did not have a Whole Time Company
Secretary and other professional who could have guide for conduct of Annual General
Meeting.

3. In respect of observation pertaining to non-compliance with provisions of Secretarial
Standard-2 issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, it was replied by the
management that Company did not have a Whole Time Company Secretary and other
professional who could have complied with applicable provisions of Secretarial Standard-
2.

4. Inrespect of observations made pertaining to non-compliance of provisions of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2018 and SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, it
was replied by the management that Company did not have a Whole Time Company
Secretary and other professional who could have complied with compliances.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 21.08.2018 appointed Ankit Satya &
Associates, Chartered Accountants ((FRN:025250C) as an Internal Auditor of the Company
w.e.f. 21.08.2018 till the time power reviewed revoked by the Board of Directors.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITOR

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor have not reported
any instances of fraud committed by the Company or its officers, or employees to the Audit
Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act. Therefore no details are required to be disclosed
under Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

PARTICULAR OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION

186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not given any loan(s) or guarantee(s) and has not made any investment
covered under the provision of the section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year
under review.

PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

UNDER SECTION 188 OF THE COMPAIES ACT, 2013

During the financial year 2020-21, company did not enter into any contracts or arrangements
with any related party. Form AOC-2 is also attached herewith as Annexure-C.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE

FIANNCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED

BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE

FIANNCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of financial year 31st March, 2021 and the date of this Report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING

CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

During the financial year 2020-21, no significant and material order(s) were passed by any
regulator(s) or courts or tribunals which could impact the going concern status and company’s
operation in future.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT-GO

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to your
Company since your Company being engaged in financing business, does not have any activity
relating to conservation of energy and did not undertake any research and development activity
or derived any benefit out of it. No efforts were made towards technology absorption. There
was no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The provisions of SEBI Regulations for formation of Risk Management Committee are not
applicable to the Company. However, as per section 134 (3) (n) of Companies Act 2013, the
company regularly maintains a proper check in normal course of its business regarding risk
management. Currently, the company does not identify any element of risk which may threaten
the existence of the company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The company does not fall under the criteria of net worth, turnover or profit for applicability of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) provisions as per Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, hence the same are not applicable to the company for the period under review.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of Cost records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

As per the requirement of “The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013” and Rules made thereunder, your Company has constituted
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) at its workplaces. During the year, no complaints were
filed with the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company’s Corporate Governance philosophy is governed by its commitment to run its
business in legal, ethical and transparent manner. The Company believes that sound corporate
governance is critical in enhancing and retaining investor trust. Transparency, Accountability,
fairness and intensive communication with stakeholders are integral to our functioning.
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The Board has framed Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the
Company and they have affirmed the compliance for the financial year ended March 31, 2021
by virtue of Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, the Compliance with Corporate Governance provisions as specified in
regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and Para C, D and
E of Schedule V were not applicable to the Company for the financial year 2020-21. Hence,
Corporate Governance report does not form part of this Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has no employee who is in receipt of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000 per month or
Rs. 1,02,00,000 per annum and hence, the Company is not required to give information as
required under the provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Further the details pursuant to Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached herewith as Annexure-D and names of top ten
employees in terms of remuneration drawn by them pursuant to Rule 5(2) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are attached herewith
as Annexure-E.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has a robust and comprehensive Internal Financial Control system commensurate
with the size, scale and complexity of its operation. The system encompasses the major
processes to ensure reliability of financial reporting, compliance with policies, procedures, laws,
and regulations, safeguarding of assets and economical and efficient use of resources.

The Company has performed an evaluation and made an assessment of the adequacy and the
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Control System. The Statutory Auditors of
the Company have also reviewed the Internal Financial Control system implemented by the
Company on the financial reporting and in their opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate Internal Financial Control system over Financial Reporting and such
Controls over Financial Reporting were operating effectively as on 31% March, 2021 based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company.

The policies and procedures adopted by the Company ensures the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business and adherence to the company’s policies, prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, accuracy & completeness of the records and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information.

The Internal auditors continuously monitor the efficacy of internal controls with the objective
of providing to the Audit Committee and the Board, an independent, objective and reasonable
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assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the organization’s risk management with regard
to the internal control framework.

PERSONNEL RELATIONS

Your Directors hereby place on record their appreciation for the services rendered by
executives, staff and other workers of the Company for their hard work, dedication and
commitment. During the year under review, relations between the Employees and the
Management continued to remain cordial.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all Board Members and members
of the Senior Management of the Company. Additionally, all Independent Directors of the
company shall be bound by duties of Independent Directors as set out in Companies Act, 2013
to be read with SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

All Board Members, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct.

POLICY OF PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Regulation 9 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has adopted the policy of preservation of documents to
preserve the documents to preserve the documents as per Regulation 9(a) & 9(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations. The said policy is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed
through the link https://hindaf.in/User/view_desk/23.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
is presented in a separate section of this Annual Report as Annexure-F.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013, the Directors, would like to state as
follows:

(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
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(b)  Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have
made judgments & estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true & fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for that period;

(¢) Proper & sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing & detecting fraud & other irregularities;

(d) The Annual Accounts has been prepared on a going concern basis;

(e) Proper Internal Financial Controls were followed by the Company and such Internal
Financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f)  Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN: 00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 15.03.2023
Place: New Delhi

33



Regd. Add.: Cabin No. DA-8, 2" Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110092
E-Mail: hindaf1980@gmail.com, CIN: L65910DL1980PLC010617
Website: www.hindaf.in

Annexure-A
MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,
Cabin No. DA-8, 2™ Floor, Vikas Marg,
Shakarpur, New Delhi, 110092.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit wes conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 315 March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Ltd (“the Company”) for the financial year ended
on 315t March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings; (Not applicable to the company during the audit period.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

34



Regd. Add.: Cabin No. DA-8, 2" Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi - 110092
E-Mail: hindaf1980@gmail.com, CIN: L65910DL1980PLC010617
Website: www.hindaf.in

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2

(h)

(1)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; Not
Applicable and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; Not
applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations,2015

(vi) The Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to

(a)

IIL.

Company:

The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct &
Indirect tax laws have not been reviewed in this audit since the same was subject to review by the
Statutory Auditors.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India except Secretarial
Standard-2,

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation:

The Company has not appointed a Whole Time Company Secretary pursuant to Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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The company did not conduct Annual General Meeting for the year under consideration.

We further report that Company has not complied with provisions of following SEBI
Regulations:

The Company did not comply with provisions of Regulation 6, 7(3), 13(3), 14, 29, 30, 31, 33, 35,
40(10), 47 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015
during the period under review.

The Company did not comply with the provisions of Closure of Trading Window as per SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2018 during the period under review.

The Company did not comply with the provisions of Regulation 76 of SEBI (Depositories and
Participants) Regulations, 2018 during the period under review.

We further report that during the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company was
duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- Executive Directors and
Independent Directors.

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Notice of Board
Meeting, Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance. A system
exists for Directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions of Board/Committees were carried through majority. We are informed that there were
no dissenting members view on any of the matters during the year that were required to be captured
and recorded as part of minutes.

We further report that during the Audit period there were no specific event/actions having a major
bearing on Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, regulations, guidelines,
standards etc.

For Anju Bansal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Anju Bansal

Practicing Company Secretary
Mem. No. 12334, C.O.P. No. 17594
Place: Meerut

Date:15.03.2023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure-1" and forms
an integral part of this report.
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Annexure-1

To,

The Members,

Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,
Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor,
Vikas Marg, Shakarpur,

New Delhi, 110092

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
For Anju Bansal & Associates

Company Secretaries

CS Anju Bansal

Mem. No. 12334

C.O.P. No. 17594

Place: Meerut

Date:15.03.2023
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Annexure-B
FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014)

Forms for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub- section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:

. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

The Company has not entered into contract/arrangement/transaction with its related parties which
is not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length basis during FY 2020-21.

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship- Not Applicable.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions- Not Applicable.

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/Transactions-Not Applicable.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- Not
Applicable.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- Not Applicable.
Date(s) of approval by the Board- Not Applicable.

Amount paid as advances, if any- Not Applicable.

Date on which the Special Resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to section 188- Not Applicable

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship- Not Applicable.

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions- Not Applicable.

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/Transactions-Not Applicable.

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any- Not
Applicable.

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions- Not Applicable.
Date(s) of approval by the Board- Not Applicable.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 15.03.2023
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-C

Disclosures pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

a) The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for
the financial year:

S.No. Name Designation Ratio against
median employee’s
remuneration

l. Mr. Subhash Sapra Managing Director 0.34
2. Mrs. Neera Sapra Director & Chief Financial N.A.
Officer

b) The Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

S.No. Name of | Category % Increase in
Director/CFO Remuneration in
the financial year
1. Mr. Subhash Sapra Managing Director 0.00%
2. Mrs. Neera Sapra Director N.A.
3. Mrs. Neera Sapra Chief Financial Officer 114.29%

¢) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:
The Percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in the financial year was -30.95%.

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 4 employees as on
March 31, 2021.

e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with percentile
increase in managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average increase in remuneration of the employees is 8.37%. The average increase in
overall managerial remuneration is 0%.
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f) Affirmation that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra

(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)

DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941
Date: 15.03.2023
Place: New Delhi
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1)

2)

3)

ANNEXURE -D

Information as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Director’s Report for the vear
ended March 31, 2021.

Name of top ten emplovees in terms of remuneration drawn:

Employee Designation | Qualification | Date  of | Remuneratio | Age | Last
Name and commenc | n/Salary employm
experience of ement of | received ent held
employee employm by
ent employe
e.
Mr. Subhash| Managing Graduate, 08.07.1980 | Rs.10,000/- 72 N.A.
Sapra Director and exp. of
more than 40
years
Mrs. Neera | Chief Graduate and | 01.01.1999 | Rs.90,000/- 65 N.A.
Sapra Financial exp. of
Officer & | more than 20
Director years
Mr. Suresh Senior Graduate & | 09.08.1994 | Rs.48,000/- 61 N.A.
Chand Accountant | exp. of more
Sharma than
30 years
Mr. Amit Rs. 8,300/- 26
Kumar
Notes

There was no such employee employed throughout the financial year who was in receipt of
remuneration for that year which in the aggregate not less than one crore and two lakh rupees.

There was no such employee employed for a part of the financial year who was in receipt of
remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which in the aggregate, not less than eight lakh and
fifty thousand rupees per month.

Mrs. Neera Sapra, Director & Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma, Senior
Accountant were in receipt of remuneration which in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by
the managing director.
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4) Mr. Suresh Chand Sharma holds 1.60% equity shares of the Company. Mr. Subhash Sapra holds
12.86% equity shares and Mrs. Neera Sapra holds 9.61% equity shares of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 15.03.2023
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure-F
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

We submit herewith the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” on the business of the
Company as applicable to the extent relevant.

The financial year 2020-21 - the year of the pandemic, the Indian economy was advantageously
poised, relative to peers. India was at the foothills of a strong recovery, having regained positive
growth, but more importantly, having flattened the infections curve. In a few weeks since then, the
situation has altered drastically. Today, India is fighting a ferocious rise in infections and
mortalities. New mutant strains have emerged, causing severe strains on healthcare and medical
facilities, vaccine supplies and frontline health personnel. The fresh crisis is still unfolding. India
has mounted a valiant defense, domestically and globally, to ramp up vaccines and medical
support, and save lives.

Simultaneously, shoring up livelihoods and restoring normalcy in access to workplaces, education
and incomes becomes an imperative. The devastating speed with which the virus affects different
regions of the country has to be matched by swift-footed and wide-ranging actions that are
calibrated, sequenced and well-timed so as reach out to various sections of society and business,
right down to the smallest and the most vulnerable.

GLOBAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The global economy is exhibiting incipient signs of recovery as countries renew their tryst with
growth, supported by monetary and fiscal stimulus. Still, activity remains uneven across countries
and sectors including financial sector. The outlook is highly uncertain and clouded with downside
risks. In April 2021, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) revised up its global growth projection
for 2021 to 6.0 per cent on the assumption that vaccines would be available in advanced economies
(AEs) and some emerging market economies (EMEs) by the summer of 2021 and in most other
countries by the second half of 2022.

DOMESTIC ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Now as far as domestic developments, aggregate supply conditions are underpinned by the
resilience of the agricultural sector and that financial sector is also badly affected. The forecast of
a normal monsoon by the India Meteorological Department (IMD) is expected to sustain rural
demand and overall output in 2021-22, while also having a soothing impact on inflation pressures.

Aggregate demand conditions, particularly in contact-intensive services, are likely to see a
temporary dip, depending on how the COVID situation unfolds. With restrictions and containment
measures being localised and targeted, businesses and households are learning to adapt. Reports
suggest that the disruption in manufacturing units so far is minimal. Consumption demand is
holding up, with sales of consumer goods rising in double digits. Overall, the high frequency
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indicators are emitting mixed signals. However, we need to see the impact of the second wave on
macro-economic and financial conditions.

CPI inflation edged up to 5.5 per cent in March 2021. The inflation trajectory over the rest of the
year will be shaped by the COVID-19 infections and the impact of localised containment measures
on supply chains and logistics.

Small businesses and financial entities at the grass root level are bearing the biggest brunt of the
second wave of infections and financial companies are not the exception. RBI is doing continuous
assessment of the macroeconomic situation and financial market conditions and takes suitable
measures.

OUTLOOK

On the whole, India's economic outlook looks promising. Government officials and industry
experts claim that this year, India will witness an increase in the employment rate, particularly in
the banking sector and the IT sector is expected to rise, with an increase in the demand for
outsourcing in the US and other developed countries.

And this is exactly what is happening in India - there has been an increase in the export value of
engineering goods and readymade garments and textiles and it is expected that India's current
account deficit might get reduced.

In the conclusion, the economy was on declining trend in FY 2020-21 (April 2020-March 2021)
as Covid-19 containment measures hamper domestic activity and external demand. Moreover, the
ongoing spread of the virus and potential snap-back of lockdown measures, coupled with fiscal
stimulus measures falling well short of the mark, continue to pose a downside risk to the outlook
and however GDP is expected at 9.2% in FY 2021.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Our Company is engaged in the business of finance, hire purchase etc. But, currently the Company
does not have any significant revenue as its lending was turned into Non-performing Assets.

OPPORTUNITIES, CHALLENGES

Opportunities

The Finance Companies are playing a significant role in the financial sector and they have
tremendous opportunities in the retail sector.
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Non-banking finance companies' higher level of customer orientation, fewer pre- and post-sanction
requirements, simple and speedy tailor-made services and higher rate of return on small savings
have assured them a loyal clientele despite higher costs.

The finance companies have been instrumental in providing funds and small savings avenues to
various sectors. These companies constitute an important link between banks and customers in
look out for more services. They have become an accepted and integral part of the Indian financial

services in view of their complementary as well as competitive role.

Tremendous opportunities are unfolding for Finance Companies in the retail lending business
consequent to a cultural change sweeping across the country.

Challenges

Setback arisen by the COVID on the financial sector may have negative results in retail & whole
sale needs of the consumers.

The Finance Companies act as a perfect substitute of banks for facilitating the poor and
underprivileged who could not get access to banks. Thus, banks could be termed as competitor.

The unorganized money lenders have a strong presence in the rural markets. They pose a big threat
to the Finance Companies in the rural areas.

Bargaining power of suppliers/depositors is quite high since they have many alternatives at their
disposal to invest their money depending on their risk appetite.

The service offerings by Finance Companies are almost the same. Thus, there is a low level of
service differentiation.

Due to the increased rivalry among the Finance Companies, there has been use of aggressive
selling & intensive marketing strategies by the companies to gain the market share.

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company operates in one segment i.e. Finance Services.

DISSCUSSION ON _ FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 and applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The details of the financial performance of the Company are appearing in
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the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Accounts and other financial statements forming part of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with its size and the nature
of its business in order to achieve efficiency in operation and optimum utilization of resources.
These controls ensure safeguarding of assets, reduction and detection of fraud and error, adequacy
and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial
information. Internal audits are conducted in the Company on regular basis.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human resources are valuable assets for any organization. The employees of the Company have
extended a very productive cooperation in the efforts of the management to carry the Company to
greater heights. The Company is giving emphasis to upgrade the skills of its human resources and
continuous training down the line is a normal feature in the Company to upgrade the skills and
knowledge of the employees of the Company.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment)
Regulations 2018, the Company is required to provide details of significant changes (i.e. change
of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios,
along with detailed explanations. The following list of important financial ratios:

Particulars FY-20-21 FY-19-20 % Change Reason for
variance

Debtors 1.23% 1.59% -22.82% Decrease in ratio is

Turnover due to increase in

Ratio account
receivables.

Inventory NA NA NA -

Turnover

Ratio

Interest NA NA NA -

Coverage

Ratio

Current 18.24 18.43 -1.04 Decrease in ration

Ratio is due to Increase
in current
liabilities.
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Debt 1.61% 1.609% -0.03% Decrease in ratio is

Equity due to increase in

Ratio shareholder’s
equity.

Operating 4.27% 3.62% 17.81% Increase is due to

Profit Increase in

Margin (%) earnings  before
taxes.

Net Profit 3.54% 3.09% 14.59% Increase is due to

Margin Increase in net
profits.

Debt 2.18% 2.46% -11.53% Decrease is due to

Service Decrease in net

Coverage profits.

Ratio

Return on 0.04% 0.04% -11.56% Increase is due to

Equity Increase in net

(ROE) profits and
Decrease in
average
shareholder’s
equity.

Net 1.29% 1.67% -21.35% Decrease is due to

Working decrease in sales.

Capital

Turnover

Ratio

Return on 0.04% 0.05% -9.08% Decrease is due to

Capital Decrease in EBIT

Employed and increase in
capital employed.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statement in this Report describing the Companies objectives, projections, estimates, expectations
or predictions may be "forward looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities
laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those either expressed or implied.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors
For M/s Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
(Managing Director) (Director & Chief Financial Officer)
DIN:00241940 DIN: 00241941

Date: 15.03.2023
Place: New Delhi
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATION

I, Neera Sapra, being Chief Financial Officer of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited do hereby confirm
and certify that:

1. T have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year and that
to the best of my knowledge and belief:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct.

3. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control for financial reporting and
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the listed entity pertaining to financial
reporting and have disclosed to the auditor along with the audit committee, deficiencies in the design
or operation of such internal control(s), if any, of which I am aware and the steps I have taken or
proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

4.1 have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

a. there were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the financial
year;

b. there were no significant changes in accounting policies during the financial year and that the same
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c. there were no instance(s) of significant fraud involved therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having a significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial
reporting.

For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Sd/-

(Neera Sapra)

Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00241941

Date: 23.02.2023
Place: New Delhi
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

I, Subhash Sapra, Managing Director of the Company hereby certify that all the Directors and Senior
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of the conduct of the company for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2021.

For Hindustan Auto Finance Limited,

Sd/-

Subhash Sapra
(Managing Director)
DIN: 00241940

Date: 23.02.2023
Place: New Delhi
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Luthra & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
A-48, Okhla Industrial Area
Phase-1, New Delhl-110024
Phone:- +91 9971117730

Independent Auditor’s Repornt

To the Members of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited (‘the Company’),
which cumprisr the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Oxther
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of the sigmuficant ac counting policies and other explanatory information.

In our r}phl.l-ml and 1o the best of our information and ac cording to the « \Fjlanalannx given to us, the aforesad
financial statements gve the information required by the Companies Act, 2003 (Act’) i the manner so
rt‘qlllﬂ'd and Eive a e nll'li.l fair view i conlformuty with the ac countug prine II\IL‘\ :.':t_'nl."lil”!. '.I.('l.'L'l‘Jl(:d m Ill{-ﬁﬂ
including Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind A5 speaified under secton 133 of the Act, of the state of
affairs (financial posinon) of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and s profit (linancial performance
including other comprehensive income), 1ts cash flows and the changes i equiry for the year ended on that

date
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Sudimg iu-f'u-le'ui under sectom 14310) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further desenbed i the Audnor’s Responabiines for the
Audit of the Financial Stitements section of our report. We are independent of the ©ompany in accordance
with the Code of Fthics issued by the Insttute of Chartered Accountanis ot India (10 A1 tapether with the
c[h],c:[l rcqm;cnwﬂ{\ lh'.'l! are relevant tor o |u|_i|| of the Tnanciaal statenwents under the Provisions I'!- lhc Act
and the rules thercunder, and we have fultilled our other ethical responsibilines w accordance with these
requirements and the Code ol Fihice W heliove tha the amdit cviben have obtained 1+ sutficient and
appropriate (o prevade a basis for our opunon

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors s responsible for the other nformaton Chihier infomation does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon

Our opuon on the finaneal statements docs not cover the ather indormanon amd we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the linancal statements, our cesponsibility 15 10 read the other mnformanion
and, in dong so, consider whether the other wfonmanon i marenally wconsistent with the financial

statements or our knowledge obtained wn the audit or atherwase appears o be matenally musstated



I

1, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there 1s a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the martters stated i section 134(5) of the Act Wt_th
respect to the preparauon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
(financial posinon), profit (financial performance mcluding other comprehensive mcome), changes in equaty
and cash flows of the Company n accordance with the accounung principles generally acccpt.::d in India,
including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records 1 accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asscts of
the Company and for prevenung and detecting frauds and other irregulanues; selection and upphcauun_ of
approprate accountung pohcies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate mnternal financial controls, that were operatng effectively for
ensurng the accuracy and completeness of the accounung records, relevant to the preparaton and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and (air view and are free from material musstatement,
whether due 10 fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management i< responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management cither mitends to hiquidate the Company or 10 cease
operatons, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseang the Company's financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obrain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from matenal musstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o 1ssuce an audnor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance 15 a lugh level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducted n
accordance with Standards on Audimp will always detect a matenal nusstatement when 1t exasts
Misstatements can anse from fraud or crror and are considered matenal if mdradually o i the apgregate,
they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the ccononue decisions of users waken on the basis of these
tinancial statements.

As part of an audit i accordance with Standards on Audinng, we exeraise professional udsment and
maintain professional skepucism throughout the audit We also

¢ Idennfy and assess the nisks of matenial musstarement of the fnancial statements, whether due 1o fraud
or error, design and perfarm audit procedures esponsive 1o those nsks, and oban audir evidence that
1s sufficient and apprﬂpl’iﬂil? to provide a basis for our opiuon. The osk of not detec tng & matenal
musstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one resulung from error, ac fraud may wvolve
collusion, forgery, ntentuonal omussions, misrepresentatons, or the override nf nrernal control

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit 1 order design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for



1.

explaning our option on whether the company has adequate iternal financul controls system in place
and the operating effecuveness of such controls

¢ Evaluate the appropnateness of accounung policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and relared disclosures made by management,

¢ Conclude on the approprateness of management's use of the going concern basts of accounung and,
based on the audit evidence obtaned, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condinons that may cast sigificant doubt on the Company's ability o continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that o matenal uncertanty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the fnancial statements or, 1f such disclosuges are inadequate, to modify our
opImon. Ouwr conclustons are based on the audit evidence abraned up 1o the date of our auditor's
report. However, future cvents or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concer.

¢  Evaluate the overall prescntanon, structure and content of the fnancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 1n a
manaer that achieves far presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and urmung of the audit and sigmficant audu findings, ncluding any signuficant deficiencies i internal control

that we idennfy during our audit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

- As required by secuon 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has pad remuneraton to 1ts directors

durmg the vear in accordance with the Provisions of and limits lad down under secnon 197 read wath
Schedule V to the Act

- As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2010 the Oreder’) ssued by the Central

Government of India i terms of secuon 143(11) of the Act, we give i the Annesure A a statement on the
matters specified i paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

. Further to our comments in Annexure [\, as required by sectuon [43(3) of the Acr, we report that

e knowledge

a) we have Snghl and obtained all the informanon and « \p]:{luh-lﬂ'- which o the best o
and belief were necessary for the purpose of ur audit of the accompanving financials statements,

b) n our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by Liw Tove Been kept by the Coampany <o far as o
appears from oir examinaton of those books,

c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are i agrecment wath the books af sceoun

d) 1 our opmion, the aforesad financial statements comply with Tod s cpecificd vnder sectinn 133 of the
Act,

¢) on the basis of the wntten representations recewed from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Duectors, none of the directors is disqualified o« on 31 March 2021 [rom being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Acr,

) we have also audited the mtemal financial controls over financial reportng (1FCalR) of the ( ompany as
on 31 March 2021 in comunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the vear



ended on that date and our report dated 237 February 2023 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified
opinton;

g)  with respect to the other matters 10 be mcluded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (45 amended), i our opinion and to the best of our
mformation and according to the explinations given to us

L the Company has disclosed the impact of pending liugations on its financial posttion as at 31 March
2021,

it Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021

uw.  there were no amounts which were tequired to be wansferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the vear ended 31 March 2021;

For Luthra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 031997N

W
\ //.
CA Shivam Luthra

Prop. -
Membership No.: 545739 A\

Place: New Dellu
Date: 23.02.2023
UDIN. %%glf]‘:) ':.-'_] ’r"){_;’r'ﬁ! 2 ¢ 7]

f Bae rs )



Afmexure A t0 the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Hindustan Auto
Finance Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that .

W ()

(b)

(©)

(vi)

{vu)(a)

(b)

The Company has mamntamed proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
detals and situation of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment of the ( ompany are physically verified by the management
during the vear and no matenal d]acrcpnncn_w were noticed on such venficaton

The utle deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘Propernty,
plant and equipment’) are held 1n the name of the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has no inventory

The Company has not granted any loan, sccured or unsecured (o companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other partics covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(ui)(a), 3(m)(b) and 3(m)(c) of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered 1nto any transaction covered under Sections
185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 30v) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted anv deposits within the meanmg of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books ol account mamntamed by the Company pursuant to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the mamtenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Secuon 148 of the Acimn respect of Company’s product and are of the opinion
that, prima facte, the prescnbed accounts and records have been made and manramed.
However, we have not made a detalded exammanon of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete

Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, cmiployees” state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, have gencerally been regularly deposited 1o the appropriate
authorities, though there has been a shight delay 1 a few cases. Further, no undisputed
amounts pa)'able In respect thereofl were outstanding at the vear-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, dury of customs, dury
of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

the statute dues (lakhs)  under protest | the amount 1 dispute is
(T lakhs) relates (AY) { pending

" Name of Nature of ! Amount ]_A;a'l—r;qu_.nt_d [Period to which | Forum where
|

_ Commussioner
s | ¢ |
[ncome tax | | ‘ - 2001-02 of Income Tax |

Income tax
Act, 1961

. | o (Appeal) :




Annexure A to the Ind
Finance Limited

cpendent A

uditor’s R to the Members of Hindustan Auto
> 0n the financia) 8 Report of even date to the

Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

vii)  The Company :

(vir) - pany has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial

nstitutic . - : :
N or government during the vear, The Company did not have any outstanding
debentures during the year. ) ‘

X h - di : o -

(1x) T el ((:jf’mpzﬂl}) d}d not rase moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

n i ’ ‘
(; c “d‘_“gl ¢ [: tastruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding dunng the year.
re 0 r et . . -

ccordingly, the provisions of clayse 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable.

I . N N . . .

(x) No fraud b!" the (,omplan:. ot on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit

(x1) Managcnal remuneratuon has been paid (and)/ provided by the Company 1 accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to
the Acr.

(xu) [n our opinion, the Company 1s not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

(xm)  In our opnion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite detadls have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS

(av)  During the year, the company has not made any preferennal allotment or prvate placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures

(xv) In our opiion, the Company has not entered nto anv non-cash transacuons with the directors or
persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act

(xvt)  The Company 1s not required 1o be registered under Section 4517 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Luthra & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 031997N

CA Shivam Luthra - ‘R

X ;v\?cf’y ' A7
yd . |

Prop. -\

Membership No.: 545739

Place: New Delhy
Date: 23.02.2023
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Hindustan Auto Finance Lin?i':::em Auditor’y Report of even date to the Members of
» On the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure B

Indepem‘iem Auditor’s Report on the Int
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Ac( 2

ernal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
013 (“the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of
Company’) as at and for the vear e
financial reporting (‘1FColFRY)

the f 1 :

nd l’;llul:.“uu.ﬂ statements of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited (‘the
o arch 2 i [

p¥ e farch 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over

Ethe Company as at that darte

M s -
anagement’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

I'he Company’s Board of Directors 15 tesponsible

for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the nternal control over fin : hed

considering the essential components of mternal .ancml reporting L‘rl[‘crll;l established by r}?c Company
Financial Controls over Fina N IR L “““ control kl:ll("d in the ( suidance Note on Audit of In.lcmal
responsibilities include the ;]l:ltf_lﬂ FPOTINg l:aL}cd by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. These

P ude t 1¢ design, implementation and mamtenance of adequate mternal financial controls
Fh“t wete Openting effectvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
mfrludmg adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frapds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the umely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 5 , )

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our Iesponsibihty 15 to express an opinion on the Company's [FCol'R based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 1ssued by the Insutute of (Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAT) and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate IFCoFR were established and mamtaned and il suc h controls operated effecuvely in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of TFColR includes obtaining an understanding of [FCol'R,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tesung and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of materal musstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtawed is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s [FCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of

financial reporting and the prcparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
ples. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that

generally accepted accounting princ
(1) pertamn to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permt preparation of financial statements n accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisibon, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements




B .
:;:;,:::n Aut:)OFiLTnclnﬂcP? ndent Auditor's Report of even datc 10 the Members of
imited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the 111?1crcnt limitations of 1FColR, including the possibility of collusion ot improper
management OWrr?dt‘ Iﬂf controls, material misstatements due to error of fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods arc nul;]ccl to the nisk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may detenorate. .

Opinion

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate mntern al financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operaung effectively as at 31
March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Luthra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registmtion No.: 031997N

! 7

CA Shi(r:ii{Lmhra
Prop.

Membership No.: 345739

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23.02.2023
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Balance Sheet

(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Notes

44 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Other Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial assets

1. Investments

il Loans

i Other financiol ossets
Other non-current assets

L

50 0.52

sH.01
N o 0.05

GH.01
0.05

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Ioventones
Financial assets
i Investments
il Trade receivables
iii. Cash and cash equivalents
1. Bank balances other than (i1) above
v. Logns
vi. Other financial assets
Current tax assets (Net)
Other current assets
Total current assets

58.56 __58.57

200.45 200.12
1.57 166

202,02

201.78

Total assets

200.57 20:0.36

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity
Total equity

450 2H 350.28
(101.65) (101.73)

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

L Borrowings

il. Trade payables

iti. Other financial liabilities
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities (Net

248.63 248.55

.16 0.86

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings
il. Trade pavables
(a) Total outstanding due to Micro Enterprises & Small Enterprises
(b) Total outstanding due to Creditors other than Micro
Enterprises & Small Enterprises
1i Other financial liabilities
Employee benefit obligations
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (Net)

Total current linbilities

0.86 0.806

.00 4.00

708 695

1095

Total liabilities

11.81

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Luthra & Associates
Chartered Accountants -
FRN @ o31907N AR N

Il /

&y [Z( cijyter
(CA Shi Luthra) L= acchln
Prop. 2 \ } \
M,Nu:?mn ‘ N .
UDIN: 331 €7 39 4 27 g 7o Toe
Place: New Delhi " ’[/‘\ \i_z"__ >
Date : 23.02.2023

26036

For find un behalf of the Board of Direetors of
Hipgdustan Auto Finance Limited

Subhash Sapra
Managing Director
DIN : vozgrog0

-

- _‘"‘Q ST
LC ~CXG - OC ¢

Neern Sapra
Director & CFO
DIN : oo24100



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Statement of profit and loss
(Al amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended
Hiesee 41 March 2021

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income and other gains/{losses)

For the year ended
31 March 2020

2.40

319

Total income

Expenses

Cost of material consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Employee benefit expenses 14
Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortisation expense 15
Other expenses 6

2,406

1.50

.02
0.Hg

0.02
.20

Total expenses

2.96

3.08

Profit before tax

0.11

Income tax expense 17
Current tax :-
Current Year
Earlier Years
Deferred tax :-

002

Profit for the year

0.09

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
-Income tax relating to these items

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the vear

Earnings per equity share:

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

0.0025

0.0025

For Luthra & Associates For gnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

FRN : 031997N : 4

(cA Luthra) [Zf cf
Prop. Il YD
M. No: 545739

UDIN: 2365139 Ry ra N 1

Place: New Delhi S
Date ; 23.02.2023

Subhash Sapra
/. Managing Director
A DIN : 00241640

Neera Sapra
Director & CHO
DIN : onzg1941

00028
0.0028



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Statement of cash flows

(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

A. Cash flow from operating activities

41 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Profit before tax a1 0.12
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense o - o 0.02 0.02
Operating profit before working capital changes 042 0.1
Change in operating assets and liabilities -
Decrease in trade receivables (0.32) 0.22
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 0.13 o (1.07)
Cash generated from operations (0.07) _ (0.72)
Income taxes (paid)/Refund (0.02) (0.02)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (A) (009)  (0.74)
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities (B) - -

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities (C ) - ) - -
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (0.09) (0.74)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1.66 2.40
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - Y 1.66
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalent as per the cash flow statement:

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above comprise the following:

Cash and Cash equivalent (Note 7) 1.57 1.66
Balance as per statement of cash flows B Y 166

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date

For Luthra & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 031997N ’
1. 1 v o J
AV &y
(CA Shivam Luthra) ==
Prop. “\
M. No : 545739 e
UDIN : .i] 2'5_'?; ) ’?“({ I_f.f _)r.\ R -
Place: New Delhi
Date : 23.02.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
Managing Director Director & CFO
DIN : 00241940 DIN 1 00241941



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Statement of changes in equity
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

1) Equity Share Capital

Notes
As at 1 April 2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year B

Amounts

45028

As at 31 March 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year 8

350.28 )

As at 31 March 2021

g450.28

11) Other equity

Heserves and surplus

Notes Other Reserves

Retnined
earnings

Total

Balance as at 1 April 2019
Profit for the period g
Other comprehensive income 9

7:73

(109.56)
0.10

(101.97)
0.10

Total comprehensive income for the vear

0.10

0.10

Transactions with owners in their capacity
AS OowWners:

Dividend paid

Dividend distribution tax

Balance as at 31 March zoz0

(109.46)

(101.87)

Balance as at 31 March 2020
Profit for the period ]
Other comprehensive income 9

(109.46)
0.09

(101.87)
0.09

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners in their capacity
as OWNers:

Dividend paid

Dividend distribution tax

0.09

0.09

Balance as at 31 March 2021 —

-.73

(109.37)

(101.79)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of changes in cquity referred to in our report of even dat

For Luthra & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants . Hindustamy Auto Finance Limited

FRN : 031997N o
. v~ . o

s sthee) (Z( ch\
Prop. (= ™
M. No : 545739 \ 2\ Actay
UDIN: 31 69¢ 939 4 YANE 8N -
Place: New Delhi A

Date - 23.02.2023 S

Subhash Sapra

DIN : 00241040

ant Managing Director

Neera Sapra
Mirector & CFO

DIN . po241041
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to balance sheet

(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

4

Other non-current financial assets

41 March, 2021

41 March, 2020

Security deposits 0.03 0.03
Loans and Advances (Considered good - unsccured) 5798 _57.98
Total other non-current financial assets 58.01 58.01
Other non-current assets
Balance with Bank e _0.0§ 005
Total other non-current assets - - o0 00
Trade receivables
Trade receivables 200.98 200.66
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (0.54) (0.54)
200.45 200.12
Break-up of security details
Secured, considered good -
Unsecured, considered good 200.45 200.12
Doubtful 0.54 0.54
Total 200.98 200.66
Allowance for doubtful debts - (0.54) (0.54)
Total Trade receivables - - 200.45 200.12
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 1.57 1.66
Total cash and cash equivalents 1.57 1.66




Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to balance sheet
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

8

(i

(ii)

Equity share capital
Authorised equity share capital
Number of Equity share
shares capital
(in Lakh) (par value)
As at 1 April 2019 60.00 600.00
As at 31 March 2020 60.00 600.00
As at 31 March 2021 60.00 6H00.00
(i) Movements in equity share capital: Issued and fully subscribed
Number of Equity share
shares (.',l.lpillll
(in Lakh) (par value)
As at 1 April 2019 35.03 350.28
Addition/(deletion) during the period - -
As at 31 March 2020 35.03 350.28
Addition/(deletion) during the period - -
As at 31 March 2021 15.03 350,28

Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 eac

share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to recenve the remaining
yroportion to the number of equity shares held by

after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
the shareholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31 March 2021

h. Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per

assets of the company

As at 31 March zozo0

Number of Number of
shares % holding shares % holding
~ (in Lakh) - (in Lakh)
Subhash Sapra 4.51 12.B6% 4.51 12.86%
Neera Sapra 3.37 9m% .37 9.61%
DD Investments Private Limited 239 6.81% 2.39 6.81%
- 10.26 29.28% 10.26 29.28%



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to balance sheet
(Allamount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

o Other Equity
Reserves and surplus
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Other Reserves 773 7.73
Retained Earnings (109.37) (109.46)
Total reserves and surplus (101.65) (101.73)
Total other equity (101.65) 101.
31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
a) Other Reserves
Opening balance 7.73 7.73
Closing balance 7.73 7.73 _
b) Retained Earnings
Opening balance (109.46) (109.50)
Net profit for the period 0.09 0.10
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly
in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit .
obligation, net of tax
Closing balance - (109.37) (109.46)
Notes:
i Nature and purpose of Reserves
Other Reserves
There is no restriction attached to the utilisation ot ot her resernve,
10 Other non-current financial liabilities
Income Tax Demand 086 0.80
Total other non-current financial liabilities 0.86 ] 0.86
11 Other current financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debts 4.00 2.00
Total other current financial liabilities 4.00 4.00
12 Other current liabilities
Advance Received from customers 0.00 0.00
Expenses Payable 0.50 0.38
Cheque issued but not prtsr:n-le'd 6.58 6.57
Total other current liabilitics -.08 5.95
95
] 1
L_.tr’: G-
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to profit or loss
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

13

15

16

17

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
41 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2020

Sale of Services
Net Revenue from Operati 2:40 312
rations 2.46 3.19
Employee benefit expense
Salaries a|.1d wages 1.46 0.90
Contribution to provident and other funds - 0.95
Staff welfare expenses 0.04 0.01
Total employee benefit expense 1.50 1.86
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.02 0.02
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 0.02 0.02
Other expenses
Director's Remuneration 0.10 0.10
Bank Charges 0.00 0.02
Printing and Stationery 0.01 0.00
Vehicle Running Expenses 0.10
Telephone Expenses 0.03 0.006
Miscellaneous expenses oy 0.05
Rent 0.45 0.45
Auditor Remuneration 113 0.13
Legal Charges 0.16
Pooja Expenses 0.08
Electricity Expenses ).02 0.00
Festival Expenses 004 -
Total other expenses 0.84 1.20
Income tax expense
Current tax
Earlier Years S - 0.02 0.02
0.02 ____9.o02

Total current tax expensc o

Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets

(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit)

Total income tax expense
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otes to financial statements

(All amount in Rs

Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

\8 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

41 March, 2021 41 March, 2020

FVTPL Amortised FVIPL Amortised
cost cost

Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 167 1.60
Security deposits . o ;';. . 0.0%
Total financial assets - 1.60 - 1.69
Financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities - .

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurcments

As at 31 March 2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Total financial assets - * ' ',___ -

Assets and liabilities which are measured amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at 31 March 2021 Notes Level Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities R S —

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fuir value measurements

Notes Level t Level 2 Level 3 T'otal

As at 31 March 2020
Financial assets

Total financial assets

Assets and liabilities which are measured amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 March 2020
Financial Liabilities

Total financial liabilities o
|



. qustan Auto Finance Limited
financial statements

i,qjl amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)
ances, other receivables, security

3 The carmin amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank bal
eir short-term nature.

deposits and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to th
2) For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

 fair value of the mutual funds has been determined on the basis of closing NAV of the respective funds on the closing date.

- the fair value of the borrowings is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

31 March, zo21 31 March, 2020

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial Liabilities

Total financial liabilities - - ———

ated based on cash flows discounted using

The fair values for loans, security deposits and investment in government securities were caleul o
ignificant inputs required to fair value an

a current lending rate. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value hierarchy since s
instrument are observable

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows usin
» fair values in the fair value hierarchy since significant inputs required to fair alue a

¢ a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level

n instrument are observable.

fous year

During the year, there has been no movement between fair value levels from pre
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ancial statements
Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk
financial statements \

and the impact of hedge accounting in the

Risk Exposure arising from [ Measurement Management
= - Measurement | ——————
Credit risk Trade receivables and other financial |Aging analysis Diversification of bank
assels deposits, investments,

credit limits and Bank
Guarantee

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other Habilities Rolling cash flow Availability of
forecasts committed credit lines

and borrowing facilities

"I Arrangement with
borrowers for periodic
reset of interest rate

Market risk — interest rate Borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis

a treasury department under the supervision of Chief Financial Officer of the Company. The
I risks in close co-operation with the company’s operating units. The board provides written

ific areas, such as interest rate risk, liquidity risk, ete.

The Company’s risk management is carried out by
treasury department identifies and evaluates financia
principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering spec

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade receivables, investments and other financial assets

(i) Credit risk management
Credit risk is managed on company basis.

(ii) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables

Loss allowance on 1 April 2019 (0.54)
Changes in loss allowance

Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 (0.54)
Changes in loss allowance -
Loss allowance on 31 March 2021 B T (us4)

ceivable is mainly attributable to the higher amount of outstanding balanee of trade receivable at the end of

The increase in loss allowance for trade re
uring the pertod

reporting period partially set-off by the trade receivable recovered d

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk manage
amount of committed credit fac
maintains flexibility in funding through availabilitv unde
position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis ol exp
and limits set by the company. In addition, the company’s liquidity manageme
considering daily cash collection and level of liquid assets necessary to meet cash outflow obligati
internal and external regulatory requirements

marketable securitivs and the availability of funding through an adequate
to the dynamic nature of the underlving businesses, Company’s treasury
r committed eredit lines. Management mouitors rolling torecasts of the -;omp:m_-\'s 1iquidiﬁ
ccted cash flows. This is generally carried out at company level in accordance with pras:tiﬁ:
at policy involves close monitoring of daily liquidity position by
on, monitoring balance sheet hiquidity ratios against

ment implies maintaining sufficient cash and
ilities to meet obligations when due. Due

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The company does not have foreign operation. Further, at the reporting date, the company does not have any assets/liability denominated in foreign
currency. Therefore, company is not exposed to foreign currency exchange risk at the reporting date, :
(ii) Interest rate risk e =
The company’s dose not have borrowing. - LA -2 Cq j ‘




jindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to financial statements
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

20 Capital management

21

(a) Risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
- safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can contin
benefits for other stakeholders, and ’

- maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

ue to provide returns to shareholders and

Company manages the share capital issued and subscribed along with shareholder's fund appearing in the financial
statement as capital of the company. Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is "('qu"'e_d to comply
with certain financial covenants. The company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period.

There is no change in the objectives, policies and processes for managing capital

(b) Dividends

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

(i) Equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Rs. NIL
(31 March 2020 — Rs. NIL) per fully paid share

Dividend Distribution Tax

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
Segment information
(a) Description of segments and principal activities

The company's Board of Directors examines the company s performance frofn
single reportable segment, i.e., lease income, of its business. Acc ordingl,

hia
disclost

Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” is not required. The Company does not have

revenue with any single external customer.

a product perspective and has identified
ires relating to operating segments under
transactions of more than 10% of total



Auto Finance Limited

Notes to financial statements
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

22

(a)

(b)

(e)

(G

(e)

()]

Related party transactions

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel compensation

. Mr. Subhash Sapra, Director

Ms. Neera Sapra, Director

For the year ended For the year ended
Manageri IR 41 March 2021 31 March 2020
eompenu‘ : mﬂlinn 0.10 0.10
Lot 0.0 0.40
Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2021 31 March zo20

Total Transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions

with related parties:

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Total payables to related parties

Receivable from related parties

Total receivables from related parties B

Terms and conditions
The transactions with related parties are carried in the normal coues

Contingent liabilities

Assessee Company's case was pending before the Ul FfA) Meerut on accout
02 which was partly allowed to the extent of Ho0,795 H

pending before the income tax authorities

Commitments

There is no commitments contracted for at the end of the ey

31 March, zo21 31 March, zo020

jemand of Rs.1,54,388/- for the AY 2001-
v of Rs673,590/- is still not disposed off &

—

? ;

J

~ &3

¥



}Iind“-'m Auto Finance Limited
Notes 0 financial statements
(All amount in Rs. Lakh, unless otherwise stated)

25 Earnings per share

(n) Basic earnings per share

41 March, 2021 31 March, z020
Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Compans 0.0025 0.0028
(b) Diluted earnings per share

31 March, 2021 31 March, 2020
Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the Company 0.0025 0.0028

(c) Reconciliations of carnings used in calculating earnings per share
41 March, 2021 31 March, 2020

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company used in calculating basis carnings pev 0.09 ©.10
share
Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company
_ used in caleulating basis earnings per share 0.09 0.10
Add/Less: - -
Used in calculating diluted earnings per share 0.09 0.10
{d) Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in
) - g 1 !
calculating basic earnings per share . Lacn o Lacy
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating bas . & 0
> . 35.03 35.03
earnings per share
Adjustments for caleulation of diluted earmings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares nsed s th & 03 35.03
15.U, e 2 T g

denominator in ealeulating diluted earnings per share

4 an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

For Luthra & Associates
Chartered Accountants i ~
FRN : oa}t)q:'h'

X - . . g

i --{'l‘{'\ - | | [ r P, - o,
w oA i ' A £ AL A7/
P oy

(CA Sht-\;nm Luthra)

Prop. AN _ Subhash Sapra Neera Sapra
M. No : 545719 Munaging Director Director & CFO
DIN : 00241640 DIN 00241941

UDIN:ﬂ::g.‘S]!\JF,w .'.-,-;.-_’.-.'

1 54/ S

o

Place: New Delhi
Date : 23.02.2023



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

General Information

T " ¥ "- 1 afe e . N

The Comp_anl_\ is incorporated under Companies Act 1956 and the main souree of revenue of the
~ : Ty . a The R : J i

(f'nnpm‘lyl |.-' ease !:umm.. [he Company has followed prudential Norms of REI for Non-Banking
" 1 o ¥ F T N ey "

Illl-lil1§l-1 Companies (NBFCs) with regard to asset classihication, recognition, investments and
Provisioning.

1. Significant accounting policies

paration of these

This note provides a list of signiticant accounting policies adopted in the pre
years

consolidated financial statements, These policies have been consistently apphed to all the
presented, unless othenwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation

i. Statement of Compliance

with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind

These financial statements are prepared 1 accordance
is except for certain financial

AS), under the historical cost canvention on the accrual bas
instruments which are measured at fair values and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
('the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Srandarde) Rules, zo15 and relevant
amendment rules issued thereatter

applied except where a newly issued accounting

Accounting policies have been consistently
tine standard requires a change in

standard is initially adopted or a revision 10 an existng accounti
the accounting policy hitherto in use.
ii. Funetional and presentation curreniy
These financial statements are presented o dndies bl (1 vhich is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts liave heen rov 0.0 te the nearest lakh, unless otherwise
indicated.,
b) Segment reporting
The Company operates inder cinele reportabie oporating coemen', Accordingly, disclosure relating
to operating reportable sepmenl g5 requrr dunder Tnd 23108 e not appheable.
¢) Revenue recognition
4. Additional Hire Charges/ Lease charpes are in the natio e of compensation charges and Penal

charees are on recognised basic,

. Hire purchase Incomets apportioned equally over the e Perlod Thowever, foreases financed

after 1 A}ml 1507, ineome l1as heen i'lJ:!\pl“"fl onthe 1R ."I'H"Hlﬂd.

The Prudential Norms presciibed by the RBI regarding the Non-Perforimine Assots are being
fullowed by the Company and noincome is recagnized in respeet of Non-performing Assets



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

d)

e)

8)

h)

Income tax

'.I'he 1“‘3‘::“3 tax expense fil‘ credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
'“‘;"{“L_ fl-"{Ed on '-:he applicable income tax rate in India adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributed to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current Tax

aws enacted or substantively
aluates positions taken in
iterpretation.
aid to the tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax 1
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically ev
tax returns with respect to situation in which applicable tax regulation is subject to it
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amount expected to be p

authorities.

ntity has a legally enforceable right to

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the e
asset and settle the liability

offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the

simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

ation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

For the purpose of present

Stock on Hire
< as reduced by the installments,

Stock on hire has been v alued at cost plus 1 finance charge

which have matured during the refevant per d.

Offsetting of financial instrum ents

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet where there is a currently enforceable legal night to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The

legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
and in the event of default, insohvency

svents and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business -or bankruptey of the Company or
the counterparty.

‘Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30
days of recognition. Trade and other payables are prese nted as current liabilities unless pavment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised init ially at their t’;nr value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.



Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

i) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cos

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-

Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Gains or loss arising from de-recognition of assets are measured as the di
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recogni

Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

j) Investments and other financial assets

i. Initial measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value

through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets ol the Company are classified in the

following categories:

« Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
« Financial assets measured at fair» alue through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); and

« Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification of financial assets depends on the entity's business model for managing the

financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition

iii. Financial assets measured al amortized cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a. The asset is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral' part of the EIR. The
.EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables, bank deposits, security deposits, investment in Government Securities bonds, cash
and cash equivalents and employee loans etc. N o

.
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
iv. Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial il:fstmment shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income ifboth
of the following conditions are met-

a. the .objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

b.  the asset’s contractual cash flow represents SPPI.

Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting period at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive

income (OCI). Currently, the Company does not have any asset classified under this category.
v. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss

Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is classified at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in statement of profit and loss. The Company has certain investment e.g..
UTI Balance Fund, etc. classified under this category.

vi. Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised only when

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred, or
e The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but

assumes a contractual obligation 1o pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, it evatuates whether it has substantially transferred
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset [ such cases, the financial asset is
derecognized. When the Company has not transi bstantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of a financial asset, the financial asset 1s

rred st

1

not dere

2 p 1
COENDISOH.

\financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and

When the Company has neither transferred
rewards of ownership of the financial assef, the financial asset is derecognised if the entity has not
retained control of the financial asset. When the entity retains ¢

Ivement in the asset

asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involy

ontrol of the financial asset, the

k) Earnings per Share

i. Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit attributable to owners of the Company

L]
eighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year

e bhythew

Y

s e

J,e CAR >

\
/
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Hindustan Auto Finance Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
ii. Diluted earnings per share

Fi . .

at‘:ii ;)het P;:"POSE of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period

P u 1 e 10‘ equity §hareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
uring the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1) Provisions and contingencies

Pll;?vml?ns are recognised when there is a present legal or statutory obligation or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources
to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of
future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongeing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of
resources are provided for.

Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements. However,w hen the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an
asset.

m) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in

applying the company’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the
company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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PROXY FORM
Form No. MGT-11

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN L65910DL1980PLC010617

Name of the Company Hindustan Auto Finance Limited

Registered Office Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur,
New Delhi, 110092.

Name of the Member(s)

Registered address

E-mail . d.

Folio no./Client Id*

DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited holding shares
herebyappoint:

1. Name

Address

.....E-Mail L.D.

Signature ... or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 40® Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 21% April, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at the
registered office of the Company situated at Cabin No. DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur,
New Delhi, 110092 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:




S.No. Brief of Resolutions In favor of | Against the
Resolutions | Resolutions

l.| To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statement of the Company for the year ended 31% March
2021 together with the Reports of the Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon.

2.|To appoint Mr. Subhash Sapra (DIN: 00241940),
Managing Director who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.

3. |Appointment of Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal (DIN:
07587549) as an Independent Director of the Company.

Affix Revenue
Signed this day of 2023. Stamp of Rs. 1/-
Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder
Notes:

(1) This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and
deposited at theregistered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

(2) For the resolutions, statement setting out material facts, notes and instructions please refer
to the notice of Annual General Meeting.

(3) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so
wishes.

(4) In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of
all the jointholders should be stated.

Please complete all details including details of member(s) and proxy(ies) in the above
box beforesubmission.



Form No. MGT-12
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

BALLOT PAPER
41°" Annual General Meeting of the members of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited to be held on

Friday, 21% April, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at registered office of the company situated at Cabin No.
DA-8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092:-

Name of First Named Shareholder
(In Block Letters)

Postal Address
Folio NO./DP ID & Client ID e
No.of Shares held

Class Of Shares

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary/Special Resolution enumerated below by
recording my assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following manner:

S.No. Brief of Resolutions In favor of | Against the
Resolutions | Resolutions

l.| To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statement of the Company for the year ended 31% March
2021 together with the Reports of the Directors’ and
Auditors’ thereon.

2.|To appoint Mr. Subhash Sapra (DIN: 00241940),
Managing Director who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment.

3. |Appointment of Mr. Paritosh Kumar Bansal (DIN:
07587549) as an Independent Director of the Company.

Date:
Place: Signature of Shareholder

* Please tick in the appropriate column




ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

41%* Annual General Meeting held on Friday, 215 April, 2023 at 11:00 a.m.

Name of the Member
(In Block Letters)

Folio No./DP ID & Client ID

No.of Shares held

Name of Proxy
(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of ...,
the member)

I, hereby certify that [ am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the
Company and hereby record my presence at the 41%' Annual General Meeting of the Company
on Friday, 21% April, 2023 at 11:00 a.m. at registered office of the Company at Cabin No. DA-
8, 2nd Floor, Vikas Marg, Shakarpur, New Delhi, 110092

Member’s /Proxy’s Signature

Note:

1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting, since
furthercopies will not be distributed at the meeting venue.



GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE
GOVERNANCEE-COMMUNICATION
REGISTRATION FORM

(In terms of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Folio No./ DP ID & Client ID e
Name of 1% Registered Holder L e e,
Name(s) of Joint Holder(s) L e,
Registered Address L e
Email ID (to be registered) S

I/We shareholder(s) of Hindustan Auto Finance Limited agree to receive communication from the
Company in electronic mode under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Please register
my above e-mail in your records for sending communication through mail.

Signature:-

(First Holder)

Date:

*Note: Shareholder(s) are requested to keep the Company informed as and when there is any
change in the e-mail address.
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